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or officially

THE TEFFONT VILLAGE HALL, READING ROOM AND INSTITUTE TRUST
(Charity Number 243080)
It is very unsatisfactory but, apart from the legal documents such as the Deed of Gift and the Conveyance of the property involved, almost of the documentation concerned with the Reading Room prior to the 2nd World War and for the first twenty years afterwards has not been kept.  As a result, the history of the erection of the building, of the funding of that and much of its usage before 1963 no longer exist.  From the one useful set of Minutes – of an Evias rather then a Magna meeting - what is known is that in 1919, efforts were already underway to find a suitable site for the building of a “War Memorial Reading Room or Hall for both the villages of Teffont in pursuance of a plan which was being set on foot in Teffont Magna as the result of a generous donation for the purpose from Lord Bledisloe”.  With permission, Colonel Kennedy Shaw used the opportunity to talk about this at a Special Meeting of the Teffont Evias Assembly where he was representing Tisbury RDC to discuss the need around Tisbury for new cottages; when that part of the meeting was complete, Colonel Shaw asked the Evias representatives if he could broach the discussion about the Memorial Hall.  They agreed and heard him say that negotiations for a Hall in the upper village had so far failed, and, as the Manor School was already in existence and seemed suitable, if available, he suggested that Teffont Ewyas (sic) might like to join in the scheme.  Apparently, Mr G Keatinge very readily undertook to ascertain the feeling on the subject and to consider the possibilities of the proposal for the use of the Manor School, and to communicate later with Colonel Shaw.  It is frustrating that this one set of minutes is the only report we have of this. It must be assumed that the inhabitants of Teffont Evias where it is believed that there were no fatalities in the 1914 to 1918 War decided that they wanted the Manor School  to continue as such and not become a Reading Room.  Village lore tells us that the site finally used became available in time for the work to be complete, with a lot of local voluntary effort, in 1922 ahead of the legal papers. The following year, the Deed of Gift and the Conveyance were drawn up; they passed the ownership of the new building and of the land it was on, plus the path from the road to the door, to become the responsibility of the Trustees.  These Trustees were the owner of Manor Farm, Teffont Magna, the tenant of Manor Farm and the Chairman of the Teffont Magna Parish Council.  No mention was made in these documents of Teffont Evias which, at this time, was a separate civil Parish.  
From later documentation, it can be deduced that there were a set of Rules for the use of the building but they no longer exist.  What has recently come to light is a collection of correspondence to do with the possibility of The Church Room becoming a Village Hall and from that we now definitely know that the main usage of the Reading Room between 1922 and 1965 was as a Youth Club where activities included Badminton and Billiards.  We also know that the letting or the sale of the Manor School in 1945 was prohibited by some members of the Keatinge family, particularly Sir Edgar.  
One interesting comment about that period comes from a hand-written letter from Mr R Lever to Mr E R Long-Fox dated 1984 when the latter was Clerk to the Parish Council. This letter included the statement ”The Room was built as a memorial to the men of Teffont Magna who served in the Great War 1914-1918 (of whom my father and two uncles were members).  The building debt was only payed (sic) off c.1938) by the determined efforts of several members of my family and friends”.  This is the only wording in any of the paperwork which speaks about funding.
Who used the Reading Room when it opened, and for the next fifteen years, is not clearly documented as the Parish Council had no other “Village Hall” but meetings - especially Parish Council Meetings - were normally held in what was called the School Room while the Teffont Magna School was still operational and then “The Church Room” thereafter. As mentioned earlier, the Village Hall correspondence of 1945 makes it clear that there was a Youth Club in Teffont which was based in the Reading Room.  Three meetings of the Parish Council in 1946 were held in the Reading Room; during the War years before that, such meetings that the Village had held were in one or other of the Councilors’ private houses. As far as usage is concerned, the authors of “The Bounding Stream” had established that it was used for billiards, card games and darts and sometimes dances rather than for reading which matches with our other sources.
By 1952, there must have been problems.  In January of that year, a Special Parish Meeting was held, not in the Reading Room but in the “Church Room” to consider the future of the Reading Room.  The Parish Clerk, who would have been T I Philipps at the time, stated that he had been in communication with the Charity Commissioners who stated that they “were bare trustees only and took no part in its administration” The minutes of that meeting went on to remind the attendees who the Trustees were and that they were responsible to manage and control the charity and were responsible for the rules and conduct of people who attended the hall.  Colonel Kennedy Shaw, who must have been at the Meeting, and had been one of the original Trustees – as Chairman of the Parish Council at the time - gave a short account of the history of the Hall – regrettably not minuted!  After a short discussion, Mr R Lever proposed that the “Club” (probably the Youth Club) should carry on as previously which was carried unanimously.  The Chairman, who was then Mr W F Crouch, stated that “he would call a meeting which would be in a near date, in the Reading Room itself so that arrangements could be made to get the club on its feet again”.
To the best available information, it did keep on going for about another fifteen years and during that period, actually in November 1953, it was decided that the Deed of Gift (1923) failed to specify sufficiently clearly and the boundaries of the premises and these were clarified by a Deed of Conveyance and Confirmation.  This document, covering use and rules, runs to two pages of A4.  In 1989, the Scheme which controls this Charity was further altered with the Commissioners agreeing to increase the number of Trustees from three to five (the quorum increased to three) and that they may come from the whole of in the village not just Teffont Magna – this reflects the merging of Teffont Evyas with Teffont Magna in 1934.
In 1968, with the Reading Room apparently redundant, the Trustees let it at a rent of £2 per week to Derek Braund who lived in Dinton, the next village from here; he used it to manufacture thatched bird boxes.  This arrangement continued for some 16 years during which time Mr Giles, who owned the small piece of land surrounding the Reading Room, sold that land to Mr and Mrs. Evans who lived in Teff Cottage the other side of the main road. When, in 1984, Mr Braund ceased his bird box building, Mr and Mrs. Evans rented the Reading Room as a store, again for £2 per week.  This arrangement which produced enough income to pay for necessary maintenance, lasted for a good number of years until after a short let by a Rupert Ashmore in 1988, a Mr Shores started a business, called Evias Sport, in 1996, for which he paid £250 per quarter.  During the next decade, Lord Sharman, who had become a Trustee as owner of Manor Farm, sorted out the finances and Insurance costs with the rent increasing to £500 per quarter.  This not only provided funds for repairs but allowed a transfer of over £6000 to the Teffont Village Hall (Charity number 800083) over time.  There was a precedent of such support when the Reading Room contributed £86 to help to pay the bill for the rethatching of the bus shelters for the Queen’s Silver Jubilee in 1977.- No, she did not stand around waiting for a bus, this is not Denmark!  The rethatching was just part of the way we celebrated the occasion.
In the years since 1965, there have been a number of attempts by inhabitants of the Village to propose that the role of the Reading Room should become for more socially useful purposes.  In fact in 1964, the subject had been raised at the Annual Parish Meeting and after a discussion, the Meeting had resolved that “the Trustees of the Room be asked either to dispose of or repair the building.”  None of these attempts have come to much success as none of the people putting forward ideas have been prepared to “put their money where their mouth is”.  It was only in 2002 that the Reading Room became one of the Village “happenings” which was reported on at the Annual Parish Meeting.  On that occasion the report was quite lengthy as few people knew much about the current status and the history.  When, at the end of 2009, Mr Shores decided to retire, he sold Evias Sport and the lease to a Mr Jefferies from Tisbury.  It transpired that the latter had health problems and was not fit enough to run the business.  In 2011 Mr Jefferies gave up the tenancy and the Reading Room was empty for a few months before a lady from Dinton named Karla Thompson took it, mainly as a store for her seamstress materials.  This did not last for long but it did give the Trustees an opportunity to see how much work was needed to get the property into a condition for 21st Century usage.  It became clear that there were terrific damp problems.  Removing the floor boards, after nearly fall through them made it apparent that they were lying directly on the earth. Replacing these allowed the installation of a damp course – it had been 90 years without one!  In addition, a large window was replaced, as was the wiring while night store heaters were added.  With these improvements, the tenancy was taken in 2013 by Mr Richard Willan for the administrative side of his furniture importing business on a three year lease and the external look of the Room was improved with the clearing of ivy and bushes and the reduction of suitable shrubs.  Finally, a stone bench was sculpted by Rose Eva to celebrate the Queen’s Diamond Jubilee.  What could not be resolved is the lack of car parking.
It is not clear what the future of the Reading Room is.  It is one of the four buildings “supported” by the Teffont Trust (Charity No 1118718) but while it is leased, unlike the other three buildings, it is financially self-sufficient – indeed it may be a source of money for the Teffont Village Hall.  Given that the same person currently fulfils two of the Trustee qualifications, the Chairman of Teffont Parish Council and the Owner of Manor Farm, it may be appropriate to get the Charity Commissioners to agree the increase of the number of elected Trustees by one more; Elected Trustees should, perhaps, be elected, at the end of their term of office at the next Annual Parish Meeting or by the Parish Council.
THE ANOMALY!
During the time that this section on the Reading Room was being written something very strange came to light and, as it relates to the Reading Room, has been documented here even though it contradicts some other evidence.  Richard Blamey who live at the top end of Evias gave me an old account book together with a few papers; one of the latter was a card containing the following words. ”Dear Richard, This ledger and the accompanying papers were given to me by a gentleman called Dave Rickets who works as an electrician for Bennett & Dean.  Dave’s neighbours grandmother was a lady called Farmer who apparently was at some stage the licensee of the Black Horse, Teffont. This must have been at least 50 years ago.  The assorted papers include a death certificate for one Emmanuel Penny who died in 1931 and two newspaper cuttings stuck to it.  One of these cuttings was a death notice for the late Mrs. Farmer which included a list of mourners and from it you can see the names of the various relationships of the Penny and Farmer families.   The second newspaper cutting concerns with the funeral of Mr Penny and here comes the first strange thing -  Dying in 1931, he is described as The Parish Clerk but from many other documents we know that Mr Searcroft of Chilmark was Clerk to the Parish Council for 40 years working in that role until 1942.  One suggestion that has been made was that he was Clerk to the PCC; this is being followed up. 
All this would have been of some interest but is not the fascinating bit which is to do with the contents of the book.  The first anomaly is the title on the first page of the Account book.  This has written on it the four words “Teffont Evyas Reading Room” but to no-one‘s knowledge has there ever been a Reading Room in Ewyas.  The plot thickens as one reads the dates of the entries which start in 1910 and continue to 1916 inclusively – so where is this Reading Room?  The obvious answer is that it is the Manor School Room, just next door to the Winery but if so, why in the Meeting Minutes is that building called a School Room but a Reading Room in this Account Book.  Comparing the two documents, the style of entries is completely different. If it is the same building, it seems strange that there is no overlap in the entries – the only slight overlap is in names of those attending the Annual Meeting meetings with those paying for their suppers and they are well known Evyas names.  There are more questions than answers.  What happened in 1916? – we know that there were no Annual meetings of the Evyas Parish Meeting between 1914 and 1919 but why did the minutes of the Evyas 1919 meeting at which the idea was proposed that the Manor School Room be rebuilt as a War Memorial not mention the six years (1910 to 1916) when it had been used as such – or was it that the minutes of that meeting were not apparently written until 1922?  Regrettably, I suspect we shall never have answers.
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